
AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 

9915 – 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   
March 18, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 

 

 

1. Call to Order 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance 
 

3. Roll Call 

 
4. Minutes of Meetings – March 4, 2013 

 
5. Public Hearing 

 
A. Consider Resolution #13-07 approving the request of the Wisconsin 

Department of Natural Resources for a discontinuance of a portion of 93rd 

Street between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue within the Carol Beach 
Estates Unit No. 5A Subdivision. 

 
6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received 

from the public and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be 
taken under public comments.) 

 

7. Administrator’s Report 
 

8. New Business 
 

A. Consider 2013-2014 Property and Liability Insurance proposals. 
 

B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-09 
amending Section 420-148-B (25.1) of the Village Zoning Ordinance to allow 

the Plan Commission as part of the Conditional Use Permit to extend the 
hours of operation of convenient cash businesses, on a case by case basis 
and require all new and expanded convenient cash businesses to comply with 

the Village's Security Ordinance, Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code. 
 

C. Consider Resolution #13-08 to initiate a zoning text amendment to clarify 
home occupation requirements. 

 



Village Board Agenda 
March 18, 2013 

 

2 

 

D. Consider Sewer D Access Maintenance Path Wetland Mitigation Bank Credit 

Purchase. 
 

E. Consider an award of contract to design the Park and Ride facility in Prairie 
Springs Park. 
 

F. Consider an Award of Contract for the Cooper Road Sewer Rehabilitation 
Phase 2 Project. 
 

G. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be 

enacted by one motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so 
requests, in which event the item will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered at 
this point on the agenda.) 

1) Approve an Operator License Application on file. 

2) Approve a draw on the Ashbury Creek Subdivision Letter of Credit. 
3) Approve a Certified Survey Map to subdivide the property located at 9620 

39th Avenue. 

 
9.   Village Board Comments 

 

10.  Consider entering into Executive Session pursuant to Section 19.95(1)(g) Wis. 
Stats. to confer with legal counsel for the governmental body who is rendering 

oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by the body with 
respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become involved. 
 

11.  Return to Open Session and Adjournment 
 

 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 

contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 

PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 

9915 - 39th Avenue 

Pleasant Prairie, WI   

March 4, 2013 

6:00 p.m. 
 

 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, March 4, 2013.  

Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 

Yuhas, Steve Kumorkiewicz, Clyde Allen and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, Village 

Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, 

Police Chief; Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue Chief; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director and  

Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Three citizens attended the meeting. 

 

1. CALL TO ORDER 

 

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

3. ROLL CALL 

 

4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - FEBRUARY 18, 2013 
 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any additions, corrections?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE FEBRUARY 18, 2013 

VILLAGE BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 

ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

5. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 

Dick Ginkowski: 

 

Good evening.  Dick Ginkowski, 7022 51st Avenue.  First of a note of appreciation for our 

Village crews that put up with several snowstorms recently.  All I can say and since I said many 

times in my neighborhood we know exactly where the City limits are.  Because you can look at 

the road, and it’s in much different condition than the Village’s. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

2 

But, on a more serious point tonight, I want the Board to be aware of some pending legislation 

that may be of interest to not only this Village but probably to the League of Municipalities 

spearheaded by Representative Jim Ott.  There are proposed changes in the drunken driving law 

that may affect municipalities.  Essentially right now first offense OWI cases are handled -- are 

civil forfeitures.  If there is a city, village or town that has a municipal court it goes to the 

municipal court and like any first offense a municipal ordinance violation.  If the Sheriff’s 

Department or the State Patrol writes the ticket that goes to circuit court, but it’s still civil 

forfeiture. 

 

Proposed changes with a hybrid system that some first offenses would be forfeitures, some would 

be crimes, and basically no one wants to speak in any way that sounds like you are weak on the 

subject of going after drunk drivers.  By all means we should be aggressive in enforcement.  The 

flip side of that, though, is that this law may create more problems than it solves.  We either send 

all the cases to circuit court, and our circuit court is already overloaded, or keep it the way it is 

and increase the ability of municipal courts to deal with it.  But setting off, for example, now I 

believe it would be .15 or .17, whatever the cutoff would be, some cases would go to municipal 

court, some would go into circuit court as crimes.   

 

And, of course, you’re going to have a situation there where plea bargaining may go to try to deal 

with what the actual numbers will be.  You may have differing test results.  I could go on and on.  

But basically it’s not a good situation.  And I think it’s something that if you’re not in contact 

with the League of Wisconsin Municipalities to be following that along with the County’s 

association they should be tracking that legislation because it may have significant impact both on 

public safety and also on city, village, town and county operations.  Thank you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Jane Romanowski: 

 

There were no additional signups tonight, Mr. President. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Anyone else wishing to speak?  Hearing none, I’m going to close citizens’ comments. 

 

6. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Nothing tonight, Mr. President. 

 

7. PRESENTATION BY GATEWAY TECHNICAL COLLEGE REGARDING ITS 

REFERENDUM ON THE APRIL 2, 2013 SPRING ELECTION BALLOT. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

3 

John Steinbrink: 

 

And I believe we have a representative here. 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

Good afternoon, everybody.  I’m Debbie Davidson.  I serve as Vice President for Workforce 

Economic Development at Gateway Technical College.  I’ve been with the College for about 11 

years now.  And it’s my pleasure to address you tonight to talk a little bit about Gateway’s 

upcoming referendum, their proposal. 

 

We have over a 100 year tradition of delivering skills training and high quality education that 

leads to careers throughout Kenosha, Racine and Walworth County.  And I’m going to present to 

you the components of a $49 million referendum, the financial impact on the community and the 

College, and provide some anticipated outcomes.  The proposal advances our strategic plan vision 

321; 321 stands for 3 counties, 2 centuries, 1 vision which focuses on academic initiatives, 

workforce development and next generational facilities. 

 

I’ll give you some background information.  Some of these items you may already know.  

Gateway serves more than 22,000 students annually, and we have a local economic impact of 

over $339 million annually based on education modeling systems data available in 2006.  We’ve 

grown approximately 29 percent since 2008, and we provide training to more than 2,000 high 

school students as well, striving to meet the skills and training needs of our community. 

 

The mission of the College is to collaborate to ensure economic growth and viability by providing 

education, training, leadership and technological resources to meet the changing needs of 

students, employers and communities which is what this referendum proposal hopes to continue.   

 

The community needs - the way that we have determined what the community needs are through 

interviews and study sessions with both business and industry partners.  We looked at the 

program needs assessments of what we currently offer in Kenosha, Racine and Walworth 

Counties.  We did a facilities review which balanced student needs and community growth, and 

then reviewed the balance of County needs and facility, quality and capacity so that we could 

determine where’s the best place to locate some of the new academic initiatives that we’re talking 

about or expand other ones. 

 

Currently this map shows where Gateway campuses are located.  Some of them are full service 

campuses.  Walworth County, the lone purple dot up there, is our Elkhorn campus.  The Kenosha 

campus and the bio-science center are the rust colored and yellow dots.  And then in Racine 

County the purple dot is the Racine campus on the lake.  The other locations are advanced 

technology centers which are not full service campuses meaning they do not have students 

services and admissions staff within those locations. 

 

Our proposal is broken down into three categories, the first being direct support for academic 

programs.  Academics in direct support for academics through student services and academic 

support services, and the projects which will cover the entire district.  Throughout the 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

4 

presentation you’ll hear about the needs and benefits of each component all focusing on 

flexibility, efficiency and capacity.  You’ll hear the terms growth, expansion, repurposing and 

new and improved technology as well. 

 

In the academic programming area we start with our Elkhorn south building where we’d be 

looking at rebuilding a building, adding new programs, updating some labs, adding a student 

commons and a conference room within that area.  In the center of the district, the center of 

Racine, Kenosha and Walworth County, a public safety training center.  We’ll talk a little bit 

more about that in a moment.  At our Racine campus adding a fresh water resources lab.  We 

currently have a fresh water resource program that aligns with UWM and UW-Parkside.  And 

then also adding classrooms and staff offices at Racine.  And in Kenosha it would be our interior 

design and barbering labs. 

 

In the middle section the student access and retention, we recently updated our student services in 

Elkhorn and the Racine campus.  We are now hoping to do that with the Kenosha student service 

center remodel and expansion and create a new learning success center and expanding our 

bookstore.  Those projects are pieces that would affect the entire district and deal with energy 

efficiency and infrastructure, HVAC, automated building controls and lighting retrofits 

throughout the district.  And then the administration center the relocation of some district 

administrative functions into that one administration center which is located in Kenosha at the 

Kenosha campus. 

 

So the project over view for academics, the public safety training center which touches the lives 

of every one of our residents across the three counties, we would be looking at land purchase and 

improvements, an emergency vehicle operations course, a simulated city, an indoor pistol and 

firing range.  That would be the main gist of the public safety training center.  And then 

renovating our Racine campus. 

 

On the public safety training center we are looking at a total of $11.6 million for construction, $4 

million for equipment for a total of $15.6 million for the public service training center.  Looking 

to purchase the land in the center, the district which would have a 30,000 square foot classroom 

and tactical lab facility.  An EVOC track.  Currently we’re doing that at the former Dairyland 

Greyhound Dog Track, and that may not be available in the future.  It’s also inadequate for 

scenarios that are needed for our trainers, and would allow much needed improvement in vehicle 

pursuit training and allow for nighttime driving as well.  It will provide dedicated space for 

motorcycle training which we have moved to a couple different locations, most recently Snap-

on’s parking lot has been provided to us for some motorcycle training. 

 

It would also allow us to have an indoor pistol range and rifle range.  Currently we have four 

booths in the basement of the Kenosha campus.  If you’ve been on the Kenosha campus it used to 

be called our trade and industry wing where we had welding and automotive.  We now have 

renewable energy labs there, and the pistol firing range is in the basement.  We would be able to 

put 24 students in the class and have 12 new booths at this new training center.  The current range 

has issues with air quality, safety and lead abatement. 

 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

5 

We would include an outdoor shooting range along for better training with movement and 

dynamic situations.  Small scale simulated city would provide facility for collaboration with fire 

and EMS student to train together.  Real life scenarios, fire trucks, ambulances, police cars, all 

together, and we would have a garage in that facility as well.  It would provide the ability to do 

ongoing training, professional development and specialty training demanded by incumbent public 

safety departments as well as increased capacity for the current law enforcement at Gateway.  A 

forensic lab would allow for training and the identification, collection and processing of evidence.  

Firearms and rifle instructor training, crisis intervention training and using squad cars in shooting 

situations.  So that kind of wraps up everything on the public safety training center. 

 

The Racine campus, you can see the fresh water program and faculty office space.  Construction 

of $1.7 million, equipment three quarters of a million for a total of $2.5 million for the Racine 

campus.  Currently that fresh water program is sharing space at our iMET center in Sturtevant.  

And so this would provide dedicated space and increase our capacity.  Fresh water programs are 

for everything from wastewater to water quality.  A number of different industries which were 

identified through a Department of Labor Grant a number of years ago and included the 

Milwaukee Seven.  We would move that to the Racine campus on Lake Michigan.  Water source 

would be the second floor of our technical building.  And we would use space that had been 

vacated by our apprenticeship program which moved to the iMET center. 

 

Faculty office space is in the Lincoln building.  If you’re not familiar with the Racine campus or 

maybe you’ve driven past it, it’s the building that looks like it’s on stilts.  It’s actually in the park.  

It’s an old building and is part of the historical register.  So compliance with building codes and 

improved working and learning environment as we repurpose that into office space.  It cannot be 

turned into classroom space. 

 

On the Elkhorn campus the expansion proposed for Walworth County will increase capacity and 

provide new training opportunities for careers and demand in Walworth County.  The project 

involves remodeling the south building and rebuilding with an additional 22,000 square feet 

which would double the size of that building and repurpose it for new programs.  We’re starting a 

new veterinary technician program and food manufacturing labs.  These would be two new 

programs. 

 

We would bring to Elkhorn three campus programs that are located only in Racine [inaudible] 

manufacturing, [inaudible] computer numerical machine operators.  We are responding to the 

ongoing need from employers for skilled manufacturing technicians.  Also a cosmetology and 

culinary arts program which would open up at the Elkhorn campus.  We have both of those at the 

Racine campus.  Those would respond to the needs of the tourism industry in Walworth County.  

Expansion of a welding lab and the updating the conferencing space in that location as well. 

 

For the Kenosha campus we would create interior designs lab and studio space which would be 

new.  This creates additional experiential learning space and puts the interior design program near 

alternative energy to provide collaboration and improve the visibility and enrollment in the 

program.  Currently we have a world class instructional, and we have a great student club in 

interior design that goes to national competitions and wins.  Right now they are located in two 

very small classrooms that are tucked away on the second floor.  This would give them much 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

6 

more space which keeps them aligned with what industry is asking for.  Also create a barber lab 

space.  In the past barbering and cosmetology has been one program.  It has now split to two 

programs, and so we would need additional lab space for that. 

 

Student access and retention we would renovate and expand the Kenosha Campus and create a 

student learning area.  The project creates uniformity and delivers the Gateway experience where 

we want all the campuses to provide efficiency.  And we implemented this in December 2012 on 

the Racine campus, and we hope to do the same on the Kenosha campus.  Elkhorn is complete. 

 

Energy efficiency and infrastructure we would be looking at $5 million for the first three items 

listed there, HVAC, automated building controls and lighting retrofits. $2 million in construction 

and a quarter of a million dollars equipment for the administration center.  So the total for this 

district wide and energy efficiency would be $7.25 million.  The administration center will allow 

repurposing of space in the Madrigrano Center.  We have hundreds of local groups that use the 

Madrigrano Center as their meeting location for conferences, workshops, seminars and so on.  It’s 

highly used.  So what we would like to do is move our marketing and print shop department out 

of Madrigrano Center into the administration center so that it is closer to staff that use those 

services, and that will free up floor space for us within the Madrigrano Center. 

 

I did have a video, but you don’t have the right software to run it.  So I can leave it with you, and 

if you’re able to access it you can access it at another time.  It’s also available on our website.  So 

the anticipated outcomes, what we would do.  An increase in the number of graduates per year by 

15 percent, and graduates at Gateway typically stay and work within the region.  Any of the 

programs and jobs that we offer at Gateway are due to what employers in local industry and 

organizations are telling us their needs are.  An estimated $54 million annual earnings gain in the 

regional economy as well.  That includes earnings generated from construction.  We’re figuring 

400 to 600 total, 200 to 300 construction workers at any given time. 

 

So why a referendum?  Gateway has not done a referendum since the 1970s.  So in order for us to 

add and expand educational programs in response to community needs this plan is put together in 

order to meet those needs.  We do not have the resources to expand programs into new areas or 

do the much needed renovations to our campuses.  And the trustees of the college believe in the 

peoples’ voice and are bringing this question to the community. 

 

It also builds on our success.  96 percent of our graduates are satisfied with their education, and 

87 percent of them are employed within six months after graduation.  97 percent of those 

employers were satisfied with the quality of the graduates.  And 74 percent are employed in the 

tri-county region.  The median salary of new graduates is $32,258.  You’ll see that information is 

from the 2011 graduate study.  Our most recent survey we had 2,308 associate degree and 

technical diploma graduates in 2011.  We had a response rate of 78 percent on that graduate 

follow-up study. 

 

So the bottom line on why we’re doing this.  The mission is to address the regional workforce 

needs of our district.  And this proposal is in line with our mission.  Increasing our capacity to 

deliver skills training will mean more graduates who will stay in the community.  To provide 

strong workforce needed to grow our regional economy.  There are state regulations that limit the 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

7 

amount the college can spend every two years in each county.  The referendum will allow us to 

meet the needs of the [inaudible].  And so the question will be on the ballot on April 2nd, and we 

are asking the question of our community.  Any questions? 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

A very good presentation, Debbie, and I totally support the efforts of Gateway.  Just a question on 

the law enforcement center.  That’s going to be quite large and very well needed, and I think we 

would support that wholeheartedly.  My question is do we have an idea where it’s going to be 

located? 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

We have been approached by every county with land.  I think currently there are five different 

sites that are being looked at.  And it seems that we gain new sites every week.  There’s other 

vacant land that is coming to our attention.  So we have not ruled any out.  We are in the process 

of doing some fact finding, looking at what the infrastructure is there, what is the accessibility to 

broad band which would be critical to us operating the center.  So those are the things that are 

being taken into consideration. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And I’m sure you’re taking into consideration the amount of law enforcement that are east of the 

interstate between Racine and Pleasant Prairie which amounts to probably 500 or more. 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

Right. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

I hope serious consideration is given for the purpose of travel and expense over time and you 

name it on where this facility is going to be.  It would be nice if was somewhere close. 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

Thank you. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

And good luck. 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

The locations are all over that three county district map.  So I can’t say that they’re all out to the 

west or they’re east.  They really are scattered about.  So we’re investigating them to find out 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

8 

where do we have, like I said, the best infrastructure, the best access to it and available land.  So 

that as we build this and we think long term about growth that we’d be able to expand.  But thank 

you. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

What amount of land and what size for this facility? 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

I think most of what we’ve been looking at in land is probably in the 10 to 20 acre frame.  Let me 

take a look and see if we have that here.  We don’t.  We talk about the square footage of the 

building but not the overall size of the piece of land. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Okay, other questions?  If not, make sure you tell Brian the bigger turnout you had than when he 

turns out. 

 

Debbie Davidson: 

 

I will.  Thank you very much. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Thank you. 

 

8. NEW BUSINESS 

 

 A. Consider Resolution #13-05 authorizing the disposal of surplus vehicles. 
 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Mr. President and members of the Board, it’s that time of year when you guys get to see the 

pictures of some of our prize vehicles that we do have.  Obviously we do keep them for as long as 

we possibly can.  So we’re looking at disposing of three different vehicles at this time.  The first 

one is a 1992 Ford tandem axle dump truck with 84,000 miles.  84,000 isn’t a lot of miles, it’s 

more of the hours and the age on the vehicle being just over 20 years old.  It’s definitely exceeded 

the useful life of its purpose.  So we’re asking for authorization to dispose of this. 

 

The second one that we have is a rear packer garbage truck - it’s a 1996 Leach rear loader.  We 

actually purchased this used when we started our solid waste back in 2005.  And it was used back 

then.  And it’s definitely extremely used right now.  We have replaced it with another used rear 

packer truck which we purchased out of Tampa, Florida which is much nicer than this one.  But 

this one has exceeded its useful life, and we do have a replacement for it.  So we’re asking for 

authorization for disposal. 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

9 

 

And the last one that we have is it’s been recycled a couple times.  It was an old squad car.  I 

believe it was a detective’s car.  It’s a 2004 Dodge Intrepid.  And then our IT department was 

using it.  And with our fleet internal service we have recently recycled some of them.  But at 

111,000 miles it’s exceeded its useful life.  And we will be putting all these vehicles out to 

auction on March 16th if authorized.  I can answer any questions at this time. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Are you sure you can sell those? 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Oh, absolutely.  And the auction company that we’ve been using, JJ Kane has actually been 

getting us a really good price for a lot of our vehicles, a lot more than we would get just from the 

open market.  And anyone is available to bid on them at the auction if they so choose. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

We’re looking at the truck that’s really worth [inaudible]. 

 

John Steinbrink, Jr.: 

 

Yeah, Kathy makes sure that we get all of our depreciation out of them. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Move approval of Resolution 13-05. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Mike, second by Steve for adoption of Resolution 13-05.  Any further discussion?   

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Good luck. 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-05 TO DISPOSE OF THE THREE 

SURPLUS VEHICLES PRESENTED; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION 

CARRIED 5-0. 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

10 

 B. Consider Resolution 13-06 approve Amendment 1 to the Community Development 

Block Grant - Emergency Assistance Contract #08-68. 
 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

Mr. President, this is an amendment to the CDBG grant, and this particular grant was used to 

construct the storm sewer in south Kenosha.  And the funding source of this grant was such that 

and to the extent that our project was coming in under budget, and that there was other projects 

that had failed to go through the grant process, or there was other municipalities that turned 

money back, we were able to pick up additional funds to expand that project and do some more 

storm water work.  So this is the resolution approving the amendment to the grant application, 

and I’d recommend that the resolution be adopted as presented. 

 

Michael Serpe: 

 

Do we have to open up the hearing again to expand the project? 

 

Mike Pollocoff: 

 

No.  There’s no assessments.  This project is paying for the total cost of the work that’s involved. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

I make a motion to pass Resolution 13-06. 

 

Clyde Allen: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Steve, second by Clyde for adoption of 13-06.  Any discussion?   

 

 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO ADOPT RESOLUTION 13-06 APPROVE 

AMENDMENT 1 TO THE COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT - EMERGENCY 

ASSISTANCE CONTRACT #08-68; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5—0. 

 

 C. Consent Agenda  

  1) Approve Letter of Credit Reduction for the Westfield Development 

  2) Approve Letter of Credit Reduction for the Ashbury Creek Development. 
 

 

 

 

 

 



Village Board Meeting 

March 4, 2013 

 

 

11 

Monica Yuhas: 

 

Motion to approve. 

 

Steve Kumorkiewicz: 

 

Second. 

 

John Steinbrink: 

 

Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any discussion on either items 1 or 2?   

 

 YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA ITEMS 1 AND 2; SECONDED BY 

KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 

 

9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 

 

10. ADJOURNMENT 

 

 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION  

CARRIED 5-0 AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 6:25 P.M. 



Consider Resolution #13-07 for the request of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources for approval of the discontinuance of a portion of 93rd Street between 
Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue within the Carol Beach Estates Unit No. 5A Subdivision. 

Recommendation: 

The Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve Resolution #13-07 for  
the discontinuance of a portion of 93rd Street between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue 
within the Carol Beach Estates Unit No. 5A Subdivision as presented. 

 



VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2013 

Consider Resolution #13-07 for the request of the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources for approval of the discontinuance of a portion of 93rd Street between 
Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue within the Carol Beach Estates Unit No. 5A Subdivision. 

 

On February 4, 2013 the Village Board approved Resolution #13-04 to initiate the 
discontinuance of a portion of 93rd Street between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue which 
has been designated as a public right-of-way on the Final Plat of the Carol Beach Estates 
Subdivision Unit No. 5A. 

The Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources (WI DNR) owns the vacant lands abutting 
this portion of 93rd Street and is requesting that the street be discontinued and removed to 
link the adjoining blocks that support several threatened and endangered plant species by 
creating more contiguous habitat that will benefit these species.  

Pursuant to Maps 30 and 32 in the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional Planning Commission 
(SEWRPC) report entitled “A Land Use Management Plan for the Chiwaukee Prairie-Carol 
Beach area of the Town of Pleasant Prairie” this portion of 93rd Street is proposed to be 
vacated or discontinued when all of the adjacent properties are owned by a public entity. 

Municipal sanitary sewer, water and storm sewer infrastructure were not constructed within 
said right-of-way.  Upon removal of the roadway, the WI DNR intends to maintain a gravel 
pathway adjacent to the abandoned roadway for a pedestrian walkway. 

On February 5, 2013 all required property owners were notified via regular mail; and the 
required Class 3 notice was published in the Kenosha News on February 25, March 4 and 
March 11, 2013 to notify the public of the Public Hearing being held by the Village Board on 
March 18, 2013. 

As noted above, the land on both sides of the proposed street discontinuance is owned by 
the WI DNR.  Therefore, upon vacation of this portion of 93rd Street the land will be 
transferred to the adjacent properties owned by the WI DNR. 

Recommendations: 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve Resolution #13-07 for the 
discontinuance of a portion of 93rd Street between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue within 
the Carol Beach Estates Unit No. 5A Subdivision as presented. 



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #13-07 

RESOLUTION RELATING TO THE DISCONTINUANCE OF 
A PORTION OF 93rd STREET  

IN THE CAROL BEACH ESTATES SUBDIVISION UNIT NO. 5A. 
IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

The Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin, 
pursuant to Section 66.1003 of the Wisconsin Statutes, may initiate the discontinuance in 
whole or in part of any road, street, slip, lane or alley by the introduction of a Resolution 
declaring that the public interest requires it. 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie has initiated the discontinuance of a 
portion of 93rd Street between Lakeshore Drive and 3rd Avenue, which has been designated 
as a public right-of-way on the Final Plat of the Carol Beach Estates Subdivision Unit No. 5A; 
and 

WHEREAS, the WI DNR owns the vacant lands abutting this portion of 93rd Street 
and is requesting that the street be discontinued and removed to link the adjoining blocks 
that support several threatened and endangered plant species by creating more contiguous 
habitat that will benefit these species; and  

WHEREAS, pursuant to Maps 30 and 32 in the Southeastern Wisconsin Regional 
Planning Commission (SEWRPC) report entitled “A Land Use Management Plan for the 
Chiwaukee Prairie-Carol Beach area of the Town of Pleasant Prairie” this portion of 93rd 
Street is proposed to be vacated or discontinued when all of the adjacent properties are 
owned by a public entity; and 

WHEREAS, municipal sanitary sewer, water and storm sewer infrastructure were not 
constructed within said right-of-way; and  

WHEREAS, upon removal of the roadway, the WI DNR intends to maintain a gravel 
pathway adjacent to the right-of-way for a pedestrian walkway; and 

WHEREAS, the plat of survey and legal description of the public street 
encompassing the discontinuance is attached in Exhibit A to this Resolution; and 

WHEREAS, on February 5, 2013 all required property owners were notified via 
regular mail; and the required Class 3 notice was published in the Kenosha News on 
February 25, March 4 and March 11, 2013 to notify the public of the Public Hearing being 
held by the Village Board on March 18, 201; and 

WHEREAS, upon the vacation of 93rd Street, the north half of the vacated street 
shall be transferred and attached to Tax Parcel Numbers 93-4-123-191-0775, 93-4-123-
191-0780, 93-4-123-191-0785, 93-4-123-191-0790, 93-4-123-191-0795, 93-4-123-191-
0800, 93-4-123-191-0805 and 93-4-123-191-0810; and the south half shall be transferred 
and attached to Tax Parcel Numbers 93-4-123-184-0660, 93-4-123-184-0655, 93-4-123-
184-0650 and 93-4-123-184-0645 owned by the Wisconsin Department of Natural 
Resources. 

WHEREAS, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Plan Commission reviewed said request at 
its March 11, 2013 meeting and recommended approval of said discontinuance; and 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing to consider said discontinuance was held by the Village 
Board of Trustees on March 18, 2013. 



2 

 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that of a portion of 93rd Street between Lakeshore 
Drive and 3rd Avenue, which has been designated as a public right-of-way on the Final Plat 
of the Carol Beach Estates Subdivision Unit No. 5A as shown and legally described on 
Exhibit A, which has been designated by the Village of Pleasant Prairie as a public right-of-
way, shall be discontinued and the Village shall transfer ownership of said property to the 
adjacent property owner by the recording of this resolution at the Kenosha County Register 
of Deeds office. 

Adopted this 18th day of March 2013. 

       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________________ 
John P. Steinbrink 

       Village President 
______________________________ 
Jane M. Romanowski 
Village Clerk 
 
vb res #13-07 final.doc 



pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Exhibit A



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 93RD STREET RUNNING NORTHWESTERLY FROM 

LAKESHORE DRIVE LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 49 AND 50 OF CAROL BEACH 

ESTATES UNIT NO5A : 

 

Part of Sections 18, 19, and 20, Town 1 North, Range 23 East of the Fourth Principal 

Meridian, lying and being in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin also 

being part of BLOCKS 49 and 50 of CAROL BEACH ESTATES UNIT NO. 5A, a plat of 

record and on file at the Kenosha County Land Registry and being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the northeast corner of LOT 14 of the aforesaid BLOCK 49; which corner is 

on the west line of LAKESHORE DRIVE; thence S00°02’20”E along and upon said west 

line, 87.30 feet and to a point of curve in said west line, which point is the point of beginning 

of parcel hereinafter described: thence south-westerly along and upon the north line of 93rd 

Street, which line is the arc of a circularly curve concave to the northwest, 39.27 feet, said 

curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears 

S44°57’40”W 35.36 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue northwesterly along 

and upon said north line, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to the north, 179.47 

feet, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, a radius of 221.80 feet and a chord 

which bears N66°51’29.5”W 174.62 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue 

N43°40’39”W along and upon said north line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the north 

line of aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northwesterly along and upon said north line, which line 

is the arc of a circular curve concave to the northeast, 254.45 feet, said curve having a central 

angle of 50°03’48”, a radius of 291.21 feet and a chord which bears N18°37’45”W 246.43 

feet and to the end of said curve; thence N06°23’09”E 95.69 feet and to a point 4.19 feet 

S06°23’09”W from the northwest corner of LOT 18 in the aforesaid Block 49; thence 

southwesterly along and upon the east line of 3rd Avenue, said east line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to the west, 224.03 feet, said curve having a central angle of 44°03’49”, a 

radius of 291.30 feet and a chord which bears S28°25’04”W 218.55 feet and to a point of 

curve in the east line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northeasterly along and upon the 

south line of said 93rd Street, 50.91 feet, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to 

the southeast, said curve having a central angle of 116°40’11”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a 

chord which bears S71°12’56.5”E 42.56 feet and to the end of said curve; thence 

southeasterly along and upon said south line, 188.73 feet, which line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to northeast, said having a central angle of 30°47’24”, a radius of 351.21 feet 

and a chord which bears S28°16’57”E 186.47 feet; thence S43°40’39”E along and upon said 

south line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the south line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; 

thence southeasterly along and upon said south line, 228.02 feet, which line is the arc of a 

circular curve concave to the northeast, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, radius 

of 281.80 feet and a chord which bears S66°51’29.5”E 221.85 feet and to the end of said 

curve; thence southeasterly along and upon said south line 39.27 feet, which line is the arc of 

a circular curve concave to the southwest, said curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a 

radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears S45°02’20”E 35.36 feet and to the end of said 

curve and the west line of Lakeshore Drive; thence N00°02’20”W along and upon said west 

line, 110.00 feet and to the point of beginning. Containing 0.87 acres, more or less. Subject to 

easements and restrictions of record. 



! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! ! !

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!

! !

!

!

!

!

! !

!
!

!

!

!

!

! !

!

! !!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!

!

!
!

!

!
!

!

!

!

!

!

!
!

!
!

!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!
!

!

!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!!

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z

Z
Z

Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
ZZ

Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z
Z

Z

Z Z Z Z

Z

Z Z

ZZ

Z Z

Z
Z ZZ

Z

LAKESHORE DR

4TH AVE
3RD AVE

93R
D ST

96TH ST

91ST PL

UNION PACIFIC 

3RD AVE

IGeneral Location Map Map Printed: 2/5/2013

Source:  Kenosha County Department of Planning and Development

AND MUNICIPAL OFFICES AND OTHER SOURCES AFFECTING THE AREA SHOWN AND IS TO BE USED FOR REFERENCE PURPOSES ONLY.  KENOSHA COUNTY IS NOT RESPONSIBLE FOR ANY INACCURACIES HEREIN CONTAINED.
THIS MAP IS NEITHER A LEGALLY RECORDED MAP NOR A SURVEY AND IS NOT INTENDED TO BE USED AS ONE.  THIS DRAWING IS A COMPILATION OF RECORDS, DATA AND INFORMATION LOCATED IN VARIOUS STATE, COUNTY

IF DISCREPANCIES ARE FOUND, PLEASE CONTACT THE LAND INFORMATION DIVISION OF THE DEPARTMENT OF PLANNING AND DEVELOPMENT.

1 inch = 300 feet

pherrick
Typewritten Text
Portion of 93rd Street to be discontinued.

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Line





pherrick
Typewritten Text

pherrick
Typewritten Text



LEGAL DESCRIPTION OF 93RD STREET RUNNING NORTHWESTERLY FROM 

LAKESHORE DRIVE LYING BETWEEN BLOCK 49 AND 50 OF CAROL BEACH 

ESTATES UNIT NO5A : 

 

Part of Sections 18, 19, and 20, Town 1 North, Range 23 East of the Fourth Principal 

Meridian, lying and being in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin also 

being part of BLOCKS 49 and 50 of CAROL BEACH ESTATES UNIT NO. 5A, a plat of 

record and on file at the Kenosha County Land Registry and being more particularly 

described as follows: 

 

Commencing at the northeast corner of LOT 14 of the aforesaid BLOCK 49; which corner is 

on the west line of LAKESHORE DRIVE; thence S00°02’20”E along and upon said west 

line, 87.30 feet and to a point of curve in said west line, which point is the point of beginning 

of parcel hereinafter described: thence south-westerly along and upon the north line of 93rd 

Street, which line is the arc of a circularly curve concave to the northwest, 39.27 feet, said 

curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears 

S44°57’40”W 35.36 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue northwesterly along 

and upon said north line, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to the north, 179.47 

feet, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, a radius of 221.80 feet and a chord 

which bears N66°51’29.5”W 174.62 feet and to the end of said curve; thence continue 

N43°40’39”W along and upon said north line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the north 

line of aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northwesterly along and upon said north line, which line 

is the arc of a circular curve concave to the northeast, 254.45 feet, said curve having a central 

angle of 50°03’48”, a radius of 291.21 feet and a chord which bears N18°37’45”W 246.43 

feet and to the end of said curve; thence N06°23’09”E 95.69 feet and to a point 4.19 feet 

S06°23’09”W from the northwest corner of LOT 18 in the aforesaid Block 49; thence 

southwesterly along and upon the east line of 3rd Avenue, said east line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to the west, 224.03 feet, said curve having a central angle of 44°03’49”, a 

radius of 291.30 feet and a chord which bears S28°25’04”W 218.55 feet and to a point of 

curve in the east line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; thence northeasterly along and upon the 

south line of said 93rd Street, 50.91 feet, which line is the arc of a circular curve concave to 

the southeast, said curve having a central angle of 116°40’11”, a radius of 25.00 feet and a 

chord which bears S71°12’56.5”E 42.56 feet and to the end of said curve; thence 

southeasterly along and upon said south line, 188.73 feet, which line is the arc of a circular 

curve concave to northeast, said having a central angle of 30°47’24”, a radius of 351.21 feet 

and a chord which bears S28°16’57”E 186.47 feet; thence S43°40’39”E along and upon said 

south line, 129.08 feet and to a point of curve in the south line of the aforesaid 93rd Street; 

thence southeasterly along and upon said south line, 228.02 feet, which line is the arc of a 

circular curve concave to the northeast, said curve having a central angle of 46°21’41”, radius 

of 281.80 feet and a chord which bears S66°51’29.5”E 221.85 feet and to the end of said 

curve; thence southeasterly along and upon said south line 39.27 feet, which line is the arc of 

a circular curve concave to the southwest, said curve having a central angle of 90°00’00”, a 

radius of 25.00 feet and a chord which bears S45°02’20”E 35.36 feet and to the end of said 

curve and the west line of Lakeshore Drive; thence N00°02’20”W along and upon said west 

line, 110.00 feet and to the point of beginning. Containing 0.87 acres, more or less. Subject to 

easements and restrictions of record. 



RECOMMENDED LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 
FOR THE CHIWAUKEE PRAIRIE-CAROL BEACH AREA 

&waw-&Wiw 

N81W * m u  FOR reg?mmn *&GlUrr 

r*CW''-rl,W~firn asmeois 

.-r 
m.rvorsra  UTILIW $D11*r&-; 

- .  
m 

Map 30 

LAND USE WlTHLN THE PROPOSED OPEN SPACE 
PRESERVATION AREA IDENTIFIED 

IN THE RECOMMENDED LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

BIAPUJC SCALE 



Map 32 

STREET RIGHTS-OF-WAY PROPOSED 
TO BE VACATED UNDER THE RECOMMENDED 

LAND USE MANAGEMENT PLAN 

Source: SEWRPC. 







Consider Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #13-09) for an amendment to Section 420-148-B 

(25.1) of the Village Zoning Ordinance to allow the Plan Commission as part of the Conditional 

Use Permit to extend the hours of operation of convenient cash businesses, on a case by case 

basis and require all new and expanded convenient cash businesses to comply with the Village’s 

Security Ordinance, Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code. 

Recommendation: 

On March 11, 2013, the Plan Commission held a public hearing and recommended that the Plan 

Commission send a favorable recommendation to the Village Board to approve the Ordinance 

Amendment (Ord. #13-09) as presented.  



VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2013 

Consider Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #13-09) for an amendment to Section 420-148-B 

(25.1) of the Village Zoning Ordinance to allow the Plan Commission as part of the Conditional 

Use Permit to extend the hours of operation of convenient cash businesses, on a case by case 

basis and require all new and expanded convenient cash businesses to comply with the Village’s 

Security Ordinance, Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code. 

 

On February 11, 2013 the Village Plan Commission adopted Resolution #13-03 to initiate 

amendments to the Village Zoning Ordinance related to convenient cash business requirements.   

The following amendments (bolded and highlighted in yellow) are proposed to section 420-148-B 

(25.1) (c) and (d): 

420-148 B (25.1) 

(c) Hours of operation. A convenient cash business shall not be open between the 

hours of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Monday through Friday; shall not be open on 

Saturdays except between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m.; and shall not be 

open on Sunday.  However, the Plan Commission may, on a case by case 

basis, expressly approve extended hours.  

(d) Security.  Any new or expanded convenient cash businesses shall comply 

with all requirements set forth in Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal 

Code entitled Security Ordinance. 

 

On March 11, 2013, the Plan Commission held  a public hearing and recommended that the Plan 

Commission send a favorable recommendation to the Village Board to approve the Ordinance 

Amendment (Ord. #13-09) as presented.  

 



ORD. NO. 13-09 

ORDINANCE TO AMEND 

THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE (CHAPTER 420) 

RELATED TO CONVENIENT CASH BUSINESSES  

IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 

 

THE VILLAGE BOARD OF TRUSTEES OF THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, 

KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN, DO HEREBY ORDAIN THAT SECTION 420-148-B 

(25.1) (c) IS HEREBY AMENDED AND THAT SECTION 420-148-B (25.1) (d) IS 

CREATED TO READ AS FOLLOWS: 

 

(c) Hours of operation. A convenient cash business shall not be open between the hours 

of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Monday through Friday; shall not be open on Saturdays 

except between the hours of 9:00 a.m. and 2:00 p.m.; and shall not be open on 

Sunday.  However, the Plan Commission may, on a case by case basis, 

expressly approve extended hours.  

(d) Security.  Any new or expanded convenient cash businesses shall comply 

with all requirements set forth in Chapter 410 of the Village Municipal Code 

entitled Security Ordinance. 

 

Adopted this 18th day of March, 2013. 

 

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 

 

ATTEST: 

  

John P. Steinbrink 

Village President 

  

Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk 

 

Posted:     



(25.1) Convenient cash business in the B-2 District. [Added 1-15-2007 by 
Ord. No. 07-01]

(a) A convenient cash business in the B-2 District that is proposed to be 
commenced or expanded shall be not less than 300 feet in a direct line 
from any lot on which any school, church or day-care center for children 
is located or has a vested right to locate, or from any lot (or from any 
portion of a lot) zoned residential, or at the time the application for site 
and operational plan approval for the commencement or expansion of 
such proposed convenient cash business use is decided by the Village 
Plan Commission. 

(b) No convenient cash business shall be located within 2,640 feet of 
another convenient cash business regardless of whether such other 
convenient cash business is located in the Village or an adjacent 
municipality. 

(c) Hours of operation. A convenient cash business shall not be open 
between the hours of 7:00 p.m. and 8:00 a.m. Monday through Friday; 
shall not be open on Saturdays except between the hours of 9:00 a.m. 
and 2:00 p.m.; and shall not be open on Sundays. 

Page 1 of 1Village of Pleasant Prairie, WI Code

3/5/2013http://ecode360.com/9349661



VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
BOARD OF TRUSTEES 
RESOLUTION #13-08 

RESOLUTION TO INITIATE A ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT 
 

WHEREAS, the Village Board may initiate a petition for an amendment of the Zoning 
Ordinance, which may include rezoning of property, change in Zoning District boundaries, or 
changes in the text of said Ordinance. 

WHEREAS, the Village staff is proposing to clarify that a home occupation is allowed 
in both the agricultural and residential districts for homeowners or occupants who reside full 
time at the home wherein they are requesting a home occupation permit pursuant to Article 
VII of the Chapter 420 of the Village Zoning Ordinance.  

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, by the Village Board of Trustees, as follows: 

1. That the Village Board hereby initiates and petitions to clarify and amend the home 
occupation requirements; 

2. That the proposed changes in the Zoning Text are hereby referred to the Village staff 
for further study and recommendation; and 

3. That the Village Board is not, by this Resolution, making any determination regarding 
the merits of the proposed changes in the Zoning Text, but rather, is only initiating 
the process by which the proposed changes in the Zoning Ordinance Text can be 
promptly evaluated. 

Adopted this 18th day of March 2013. 

 

       VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 
ATTEST: 
 
 

______________________________ 
______________________________  John P. Steinbrink 
Jane M. Romanowski     Village President 
Village Clerk 
 
 
Posted:  __________________________ 
 
08-Home Occupation Clarification.doc 



     
 

9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951     

Office of the Village Engineer 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 

 M E M O 
Office of the Village 

Engineer/Building Inspection 

Michael Spence, P.E., LEED
®

AP 

 

 

                 TO: Mike Pollocoff/Village Administrator 

 

               CC: John Steinbrink Jr./Public Works Director 

   Jane Romanowski/Village Clerk 

 

     FROM: Mike Spence/Village Engineer 

  

      DATE: March 9, 2013 

 

ATTACHMENTS: Wetlands filled map 

   Affidavit of Bank Transfer 

 

SUBJ: Sewer D Access Maintenance Path Wetland Mitigation Bank Credit 

Purchase 

 

 

The completion of the Sewer D path for access to the manholes for maintenance and cleaning of 

the siphons that were installed in 2010 will require the filling of 0.57 acres of wetlands. As the 

attached figure shows there are affected wetlands in two locations. The wetlands filled will need 

to be mitigated at a ratio of 1.32:1. This results in a required credit of 0.75 acres. The Northland 

Mitigation Bank has reserved 0.57 credits for the Village for this project. 

 

The cost for the wetland credit is $50,000 per acre. This results in a compensatory wetland 

mitigation fee of $37,500 to be paid by the Village. I am recommending that this fee be 

approved and paid. This will allow the final permits for the project from the Wisconsin 

Department of Natural Resources and the US Army Corps of Engineers to be issued. At that 

point the Village will be able to complete the path and the crossing of the tributary to allow 

Village crews to clean the siphons. 





NNORTHLAND WETLAND MITIGATION BANK 

AFFIDAVIT OF BANK CREDIT TRANSFER 

 

Applicant Information 

 

Name:  Village of Pleasant Prairie 

  John Steinbrink Sr. Village President      

Address: 9915 39
th

 Avenue 

  Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158        

Telephone: 262-925-6721 

             

Project Summary 

 

Brief Description of Project: 

This project is to construct an elevated maintenance path to provide access to 

manholes associated with the Sewer D sanitary sewer to clean the siphons under 

the unnamed tributary to the DesPlaines River.  The access path will provide 

safety to Village employees during flood events and reduce the potential  

for sanitary sewer overflows to a tributary of the Des Plaines River and adjacent 

properties. 

Location: (quarter, quarter, section, Town-Range; county, state, WDNR geographic management unit) 

 Area 1: SW ¼, NW ¼, Section 17, T.1N-R.22 E 

 Area 2: NE ¼, NE ¼, Section 20, T.1N-R.22 E 

 Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, Wisconsin 

 Illinois – Fox GMU          

Acres of Wetland Impact by Wetland Type: 

 Area 1: 0.48 acre – fresh wet meadow  

 Area 2: 0.09 acre – fresh wet meadow  

 Total:  0.57 acre          

Replacement Ratio and Required Bank Credits:  

Replacement Ratio: 1.32 : 1 

 Credits Required: 0.75         

U.S. Army Corps of Engineers Permit Type / Number: 

 Pending  

             

 

Certification 

 

1. I certify that I have received    0.75    acres of compensatory mitigation credit from 

the Northland Wetland Mitigation Bank. 

 

 

____________________________________       

 Applicant Signature      Date  

 

2. I certify that the Northland Wetland Mitigation Bank has distributed    0.75    acres of 

approved compensatory mitigation credit to the above named applicant and that such 

debit has been noted in the Bank accounting system. 

 

____________________________________       

 Bank Administrator      Date 



Legacy Bogs, LLC

2321 West Grand Avenue

Wisconsin Rapids, WI  54495

BILL TO:

VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE DATE:  March 8, 2013

9915 39th AVENUE

PLEASANT PRAIRIE, WI  53158 INVOICE No.   1302

DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

0.75 Acre Compensatory Wetland Mitigation Credit $50,000 $37,500

Wisconsin Administrative Code NR 350 Surcharge $0 $0

TERMS: Affidavit of Bank Credit Transfer to be executed upon

              receipt of payment.

             This invoice is valid for 90 days.

Federal Tax ID #: 20-4365423

Please make check payable to Legacy Bogs, LLC TOTAL $37,500



     
 

9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951     

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village 
Engineer/Building Inspection 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®AP 

 
 
      TO: Mike Pollocoff/Village Administrator 
 
     CC:  John Steinbrink Jr./Public Works Director 
  Jane Romanowski/Village Clerk 
 
FROM: Mike Spence/Village Engineer 
  
 DATE: March 13, 2013 
 
ATTACHMENTS: RASmith National Contract Agreement 
    
   SUBJ: Consultant Recommendation and Contract Approval 
 
 
The Village executed an agreement on January 21, 2013 with the Wisconsin Department of 
Transportation (WisDOT) to receive partial funding for the Pleasant Prairie/Kenosha County 
Park and Ride Facility to be built off of Terwall Terrace adjacent to the RecPlex.  
 
The execution of the agreement allows for the design of the facility to commence. 
 
A Request for Proposals document for professional consultants for the design of this project was released on 
February 11, 2013. Three proposals were received on March 1, 2013. (RASmith National, Crispell-Snyder, 
Inc. and Benesch). 
 
The consultant selection process involved two steps: initial selection of top 2 firms based on their 
qualifications. The second step involved opening a sealed compensation proposal for the top rated 
consultants. The selection committee included five Pleasant Prairie staff and Gary Sipsma from Kenosha 
County. The proposals were initially evaluated based on the following criteria: 

• Project Manager/Key Personnel; 
• Project Approach; 
• Previous Experience and capabilities of firm with similar projects; 
• Overall quality of proposal. 

 
Based on the above criteria all three firms submitted good qualification. As per the provisions of the RFP 
their compensation proposals were opened. The total proposed compensation was: 

1. RASmith National:                $173,841 
2. Benesch:                                $189,895 
3. Crispell-Snyder, Inc.:            $204,222 

 
The differences between the three proposals were attributed to more hours for the bottom two firms.  
 
RASmith National has completed all of the preliminary effort associated with this project. In 



     
 

9915 39th Ave, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.948.8951     

Office of the Village Engineer 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED A 
 M E M O 
Office of the Village 
Engineer/Building Inspection 
Michael Spence, P.E., LEED®A  

addition their proposal was very detailed on their approach to the environmental challenges 
anticipated with the onsite wetlands. This will be a key in completing the design and acquiring the 
needed environmental approvals from the Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources and the US 
Army Corps of Engineers. As part of their proposal effort they have made contact with the 
regulatory agencies and know what will be required. RASmith National has the qualifications to 
complete this project in a timely and cost effective manner. I have worked with their proposed 
project manager who is a very capable design engineer. They put together an outstanding proposal. 
It is for these reasons I am asking the Board to approve the Contract for Professional Engineering 
Services for RASmith National for a $173,841. 
 
 

 































 

8600 Green Bay Road, Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-2709   262.925.6765   FAX 262.694.2941 

Office of the Village 

Director of Public Works 

John Steinbrink, Jr. 

 

 

To: Michael Pollocoff 
From: John Steinbrink, Jr. 
Subject: Cooper Road Sewer Rehabilitation 
Date: March 18, 2013 
 
 
The Pleasant Prairie Sewer Utility is planning the second phase of the multiyear rehabilitation 
project for the Cooper Road Sewer drainage basin.  The area is generally located north of 85th 
to 76th St along Cooper Road West to 56th Ave.  This year will include relining of sanitary sewer 
mains on Cooper Road from 79th St to 85th St.  Please see the attached map. 
 
The sewer was constructed in around 1950’s and consists of 2.4 miles of clay sewer main and 
222 six inch clay laterals.  The area has been subject to sewer backups and high sewer flows.  
During rain events the flow will increase ten times higher than in dry conditions.  The suspected 
causes of these high flows are infiltration of groundwater into sewer mains and laterals and 
illegal sump pump connections. 
 
On Thursday February 28th, three bids were received for the installation of approximately 2,588 
feet of sewer main lining and rehabilitation for 117 vertical feet of sanitary manhole. 
 
Visu-Sewer, Inc   $  81,035.00 
Terra Engineering and Construction $  90,867.00 
Michels Corporation   $  96,888.00 
 
The approved 2013 Sewer Utility Capital Budget for this rehabilitation project is $185,000.   
 
Visu-Sewer has completed this sanitary sewer relining for Pleasant Prairie in the past. Pipe 
relining has become a popular rehabilitation method.  A new liner is pulled into the existing 
sewer main or lateral and cured into place.  This is the most cost effective method and is 
recommended for this project. 
 
I recommend a contract be awarded to Visu-Sewer Inc for sanitary sewer lining services and 
manhole rehabilitation in phase two of the Cooper Road Sewer Rehabilitation project not to 
exceed $81,035.00. 
 





 

CLERK'S CERTIFICATION OF 

 BARTENDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 

    Period Ending: March 12, 2013 

 

 

I, Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 

Wisconsin, do hereby certify the following persons have applied for bartender licenses and each 

applicant is in compliance with the guidelines set forth in Chapter 194 of the Municipal 

Code.  I recommend approval of the applications for each person as follows:  

 

NAME OF APPLICANT    LICENSE TERM 

 

1. Tracy A. Marshall    thru June 30, 2014 

       

  

      

 

 

 

 

Jane M. Romanowski 

Village Clerk     

 

 

 



 

9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.694.1400  FAX 262.694.4734 

 

 

AFFIDAVIT ACCOMPANYING DRAFT UNDER TALMER BANK  

AND TRUST, AS SUCCESSOR INTEREST TO FIRST BANKING CENTER 

IRREVOCABLE LETTER OF CREDIT NO. 37351600002 

DATED APRIL 2, 2012 

 

STATE OF WISCONSIN) 

    ) SS: 

COUNTY OF KENOSHA) 

 

Michael R. Pollocoff, being first duly sworn on oath, deposes and says as follows: 

 

1. I am the Village Administrator of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin (the Village). 

 

2. The Village Board of Trustees, at a meeting duly held on the 18th day of March, 2013, duly 

approved a draft upon Talmer Bank and Trust, as successor interest to First Banking Center 

Irrevocable Letter of Credit No. 37351600002 dated April 3, 2012 in the amount of US 

$98,500.00 (Ninety-eight Thousand Five Hundred and no/100 U.S. Dollars). 

 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Michael R. Pollocoff 

        Village Administrator 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  

 

Subscribed and sworn to before me 

this 18th day of March, 2013. 

 

_____________________________ 

Notary Public, Kenosha Co., WI 

My commission expires __________ 

 

        ATTEST: 

 

 

        ________________________________ 

        Jane M. Romanowski 

        Village Clerk 

        Village of Pleasant Prairie  



Consider the request of Todd Hansen for approval of a Certified Survey Map to subdivide 

the property located at 9620 39th Avenue. 

Recommendation: 

Plan Commission recommends that the Village Board approve the Certified Survey Map 

subject to the comments and conditions of the March 18, 2013 Village Staff Report.  



VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF MARCH 18, 2013 

Consider the request of Todd Hansen for approval of a Certified Survey Map to subdivide 

the property located at 9620 39th Avenue. 

 

The petitioner is proposing to subdivide the property located at 9620 39th Avenue into two 

lots.  This property is zoned R-3, Urban Single Family Residential District which requires that 

each lot be a minimum of 20,000 square feet with a minimum of 100 feet of frontage on a 

public road. 

Lot 1 is proposed to be 22,545 square feet with 167 feet of frontage on 97th Street and 135 

feet of frontage on 39th Avenue (CTH EZ).  The existing house will remain and the existing 

pole barn on Lot 2 is being relocated to Lot 1 (west of the house).  Permits were issued in 

February 2013 for this relocation.  The existing house is considered a non-conforming 

structure in that the house does not meet the current setbacks to the north property line 

(shown at 3.5 feet wherein a minimum of 10 feet is required) and the setback to the east 

property line (shown at 58 feet wherein a minimum of 65 feet is required). 

Lot 2 is proposed to be 38,205 square feet with 283 feet of frontage on 97th Street. 

No additional right-of-way is required for 97th Street.  In addition, Kenosha County does not 

need any additional right-of-way on 39th Avenue (CTH EZ).  Furthermore, no additional 

Utility Easements are required by We Energies at this time.  

The home on Lot 1 is currently connected to municipal sanitary sewer and water and a new 

home on Lot 2 shall be serviced by municipal sanitary sewer and water from 97th Street.  

The existing nine (9) street trees adjacent to Lots 1 and 2 within 97th Street shall continue 

to be maintained by the property owners of said lots.  At the time of construction of a new 

home on Lot 2 the street trees shall be protected during construction, and if the proposed 

new driveway is located within 10 feet an existing street tree, the street tree will need to be 

relocated in an acceptable location to the Village within the 97th Street right-of-way at the 

property owners cost. 

All outstanding taxes and deferred/outstanding special assessments shall be paid prior to 

recording the CSM.  Pursuant to the Village Finance Records, there are no real estate taxes 

outstanding and the following deferred special assessments are outstanding:  Deferred 

Meadowdale Paving $3,072.73 and Deferred Meadowdale Street Construction $907.70.   

Also due at the time of building permit would be the sewer connection fee of $1,600/per 

residential unit and impact fee of $1490/per new residential unit on Lot 2.   

The Plan Commission recommends approval of the CSM subject the above 

comments and the following conditions: 

1. The original CSM shall be executed by the property owner and submitted to the 

Village for signatures. 

2. All deferred/outstanding special assessments including the right of recovery for the 

public improvements installed in 97th Street as part of the development of 

Meadowdale Estates Subdivision shall be paid prior to recording the CSM.  

3. The CSM shall be executed by all parties and recorded at the Kenosha County 

Register of Deeds Office within 30 days of the Village Board approval. 






	Agenda - March 18 2013
	Minutes - March 4 2013
	5A. Resolution 13-07 93rd Street Discontinuance
	VB Res #13-07
	General Location Map
	Request
	Survey
	Maps 29-30
	Map 32 Chiwaukee Prairie Plan

	8A. Property and Liability Insurance Letter and Chart
	8B. Ordinance 13-09 Chapter 420 Amendment
	Ord #13-09
	Existing Section (25.1)

	8C. Resoltion 13-08 Initiate Zoning Text Amend
	8D. Sewer D Access Path Mitigation Purchase
	Sewer D Wetland Fill Map
	Bank Affidavit - Sewer D Access Path
	Bank invoice - Sewer D Access Path

	8E. Contract to design Park and Ride Facility
	Park & Ride Contract

	8F. Cooper Road Sewer Rehab Project
	Cooper Road Sewer Project Map

	8G. 1) Operator License Approval
	8G. 2) Ashbury Creek Draw on LOC 37351600002  3-18-13
	8G. 3)CSM 9620 39th Ave
	VB memo Hansen CSM
	CSM




